
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837  

e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 7 October 2014 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor. 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   29 September 2014 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on  Tuesday 2 September 2014 (copy enclosed).   
 

(Pages 
1 - 4) 

3.  Declarations of Interest.  
 
(Members are no longer required to declare personal or prejudicial 
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that 
are not currently included within their Register of Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

a)    Interim Report of the Leisure Task Group - To present the Interim 
Report of the Leisure Task Group.  (Report of the Leisure Task 
Group enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
5 - 34) 

7.  Performance Report for Quarter 1 2014-15 - To provide an update of 
delivery against our 2011-15 Corporate Plan for the period 1 April 2014 
to 30 June 2014.  (Joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Internal 
Services, Performance and Business Development and Executive 
Director of Commissioning and Governance enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
35 - 50) 

8.  Write Offs - To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts.  (Joint report 
of the Deputy Leader / Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and 
Strategic Planning and the Finance Manager (S151) enclosed.)  
 
(Please note that the appendices associated with this report are not 
for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 1 (Information relating to 
any individual), 2 (Information which is likely to reveal the identity 
of an individual) and 3 (Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and are therefore attached to this agenda as 
Item 11.) 
 

(Pages 
51 - 56) 



9.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. -  
 
Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 

special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 

be dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules. 

 

 

10.  To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 

11.  Write Offs – Appendix.  (Enclosed.) (Pages 
57 - 68) 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 13 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 2 September 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
G A Porter (Leader of the Council) 

 
C N Worth (Deputy Leader 
of the Council)  
 

P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader) 
 

C J Lawton 
G J Taylor 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

A Casson, P E Coupland and S-A Slade 

The Executive Director (Commissioning and Governance), the Finance Manager 
(Section 151 Officer), the Democratic Services and Legal Manager, the Economic 
Development Manager and the Member Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M G Chandler, 
R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson and A R Woolf (Junior Portfolio Holder), together 
with the Chief Executive and the Executive Director (Place). 
 
In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman, Performance Monitoring Panel), 
Councillor G R Aley (Chairman, Governance and Audit Committee), Councillor 
M D Seymour (Vice-Chairman, Policy Development Panel) and Councillor 
A M Newton (Independent Group Leader).   
 
Community Representatives:  Reginald William George Boot (Parish Councils), 
Councillor Roger Perkins (South Holland Citizens Advice Bureau) and Inspector Jim 
Tyner (Lincolnshire Police).  
 
 Action By 

18. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2014 were signed by 
the Leader as a correct record.  

 

   

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

  

 No interests were declared.   

   

20. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET 
PROCEDURE RULE 2.4  

 

  

 No questions were raised under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.   

   

21. MATTERS SUBJECT TO CALL-IN   

  

 There were no matters subject to call-in.   

  
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



- 14 - 
 

CABINET - 2 September 2014 
 

 

 

22. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANELS  

 

  

 There were no matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels.   

 

   

23. GREATER LINCOLNSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE 
PARTNERSHIP (GLLEP) PROJECTS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the joint report of the Deputy Leader 
of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic 
Development and Big Society and the Economic Development 
Manager which sought approval of the development of outline 
business cases for Council led projects for the next funding round 
of GLLEP Growth Deal and European Regional Development 
Fund (ERDF) bidding, and subject to GLLEP first stage approval, 
agreement that the Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society, 
along with the Executive Director (Place), be given delegated 
authority to approve those projects to be worked up to full 
business case stage and submitted for funding allocation from the 
programme.  Additionally, approval was sought in order to offer 
support to partner projects being developed for the benefit of the 
South Holland District that were identified within the GLLEP 
Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and/or meet strategic alignment 
priorities as set out within the SEP.  A summary and further 
details of Council and Partner led project were set in Appendices 
A and B within the report. 
 
The report was discussed and the following issues were raised: 
 

• Recommendation 3 within the report appeared to suggest that 
the Rail Freight Interchange was of a higher priority than the 
other projects listed.  It was confirmed that none of the 
suggested projects were in order of priority.  The Leader 
stated that he was not supporting the Rail Freight Interchange, 
and that the projects should be listed in order of priority. 

• The Spalding Western Relief Road, Phases 2 and 3, met 
strategic SEP alignment priorities.  Could the funding sources 
be used to fund Phase 1?  It was stated that funding for Phase 
1 was already in place however, members requested that an 
update on the schedule for this funding be provided to the next 
meeting of the Cabinet.  

• Spalding Town bus – Some services within the town had 
recently been withdrawn and some areas of new development 
were not covered by a service at all.  Could this source of 
funding be used to provide an extended service? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



- 15 - 
 

CABINET - 2 September 2014 
 

 

 

DECISION: 
 
a)  That the development of outline business cases for Council 

led projects i) and ii) below for the next funding round of 
GLLEP Growth Deal and European Regional Development 
Fund (ERDF) bidding be approved. 

 
i)  South Holland Business Growth and Employment 

Project (Crease Drove – Growth Deal). 
 
ii)  Grants4Growth Phase 2 (ERDF). 

 
b)  That subject to GLLEP approval of the outline business 

cases, the Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic 
Development, and Big Society along with the Executive 
Director (Place) be delegated authority to approve those 
projects to be worked up to full business case stage and 
submitted for GLLEP funding allocation;  

 
c)  That the partner led projects identified within the GLLEP 

Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and projects i), ii), iii) and iv) 
below that meet strategic SEP alignment priorities be 
supported by the Cabinet in priority order. 

 
i)  Spalding Western Relief Road Phase 2 & 3. 
 
ii)  Holbeach Campus. 
 
iii)  Peppermint Junction;  
 
iv) Rail Freight Interchange 
 

d) That a potential project to provide an extended Spalding 
Town bus service be researched to ascertain if it met the 
criteria; and 

 
e) That an update on the schedule for funding of Phase 1 of the 

Spalding Western Relief Road be provided to the next 
meeting of the Cabinet. 

 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to approve the recommendations; or 

• To approve the recommendations without amendments. 
Reasons for decision: 

• All the projects detailed within Appendices A and B would 
make a substantial contribution to economic growth and 
employment in the GLLEP area and within the District over 
the next 20 years.  The Council needed to take a lead role in 
developing and supporting projects that ensured the District 

 

 

 

MS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JK, MS, 

Cllr NW  

 

 

 

 

 

 

MS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MS 

 

 

 

 

 

MS  

Page 3



- 16 - 
 

CABINET - 2 September 2014 
 

 

 

remained a prosperous and vibrant place to live and work for 
our communities; and 

• The total value of the Council led projects was circa £12.9 
million subject to attracting match funding.)  

   

24. CLOSURE OF MEETING   

  

 Due to an unforeseen emergency, it was agreed to close the 
meeting at approximately 6.50pm and that the outstanding 
agenda item (Item 7, Financial Performance Quarter 1 2014/15) 
be referred to full Council on 10 September 2014 for 
consideration.   

 

   

 
(The meeting ended at 6.50 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
These minutes are published on 5 September 2014.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on 15 September 2014 (i.e. after the 
expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless during 
that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Assistant Director Democratic Services 
requesting that the decision be called-in and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is called-in it will firstly 
be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on 10 September 2014. 
 

Page 4



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: The Leisure Task Group 
 
To: Cabinet – 7 October 2014 
 
(Author: Shelley French - Member Services Support Officer) 
 
Subject: Interim report of the Leisure Task Group 
 
Purpose: To present the Interim Report of the Leisure Task Group 
 

Recommendation 
 
That the interim report and recommendations of the Leisure Task Group be considered and 
agreed for approval, as detailed within the attached report, at Appendix 1.     
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council at its meeting on 11 April 2012 received a presentation from the Assistant 

Director for Finance regarding the future options for the Castle Sports Complex. 
 
1.2 Members discussed the possibilities and agreed that no further work should be undertaken 

on the project at present and that the financial position should be reviewed in 2 years time.   
 
1.3 On 30 April 2013 the Policy Development Panel and Performance Monitoring Panel agreed 

to undertake a review of Leisure and formed a Joint Task Group.  The Task Group was 
made up of 8 Councillors from both Panels; membership of the Task Group was as follows: 

 

• Councillor G Aley (Chairman) 

• Councillor D Ashby 

• Councillor G K Dark 

• Councillor R Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 

• Councillor S Slade 

• Councillor E J Sneath 

• Councillor S Wilkinson; and 

• Councillor A R Woolf (later replaced with Councillor A Casson).   
 
1.4 Terms of Reference for the Task Group were agreed at its first meeting on 21 January 2014 
 and are as follows: 
 

1. Establish what leisure provision the District Council presently provides, examining costs, 
resident satisfaction and competitiveness in order to identify ways of increasing income or 
reducing expenditure; 

 
2. To understand what the District Council wishes to provide and what the public and major 

employers need;  
 
3. To examine the options for future provision either to be supplied by the Council, the private 

sector or shared management. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6.a)



1.5 It was agreed that the Leisure Task Group would provide an interim report to the Panels 
and Cabinet during the autumn of 2014, with the anticipation of a final report to Cabinet in 
February 2015.    

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 That Cabinet agree the interim report and its recommendations for approval. 
 
2.2  That the Cabinet agree the interim report and its recommendations subject to amendments; 

or 
 
2.3 That the Cabinet does not approve the interim report and its recommendations.  
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To inform Cabinet of the work of the Leisure Task Group to date, and for it to agree its 

recommendations in order for the work of the Task Group to progress.   
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To provide interim recommendations to be made to Cabinet based on the findings made by 

the Task Group so far.   
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Some travel was undertaken as part of the work of the Task Group therefore meaning an 

impact on the Council's carbon footprint.   
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 The Leisure Task Group will seek any legal advice if necessary when making 

recommendations, no legal advice to date has been sought.   
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 South Holland currently holds a contract with Leisure in the Community as its provider of 

Leisure Provision for the Castle Sports Complex and Swimming Pool.  This contract comes 
to an end in 2018, in line with openness and transparency any future contract being 
undertaken would be subject to an appropriate tendering process.   

 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 Part of the Leisure Task Group's aims are to listen 'Our Customers' and use any of their 

suggestions and complaints regarding Leisure, that have been received to help form part of 
its work, and to inform and recommendations.   

 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

Page 6



5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Some financial assistance has been required towards the work of the Task Group, off site 

visits and for the commissioning of a provider of Customer Insight, Business Intelligence 
and Consultation services to the cultural services, active Leisure and Health and Fitness 
Industries.  All work undertaken to date, has been within allocated budgets for work 
undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny.   

 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1 Leisure is an important part of the Health and Wellbeing of the District and the Task group 

has sought to investigate current and future benefits the authority could bring to the 
community.   

 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 At this time the Leisure Task Group is asking for approval of its interim report and its 

recommendations to Cabinet therefore it is in the opinion of the report author there are no 
implications.   

 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 The work of the Task Group is assisted by the Lead Officer and Administration support from 

Democratic Services.  In addition to this there had been the requirement of assistance from 
officers involved directly with leisure provision.   

  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 Various stakeholders have been consulted as part of the work of the Task Group which 

included: 
 

• Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd; 
 

• Breckland Council;  
 

• Leisure in the Community  
 
5.12.2 As this report of the Task Group is an interim report, it is expected that consultation with 
 stakeholders will be on going.   
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 The current Leisure Facilities within South Holland are predominately based within 

Spalding, in the Castle Ward.  It is thought however, that, any recommendations of the 
Task Group could affect South Holland as a whole District.   

 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Background papers:- None  

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Shelley French – Member Services Support Officer 
Telephone Number: 01775 764451 
Email: sfrench@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Officer and Councillor who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Phil Adams – Public Protection Manager 

Councillor G Aley – Chairman of the Leisure Task Group 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Discretionary Service  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A  Interim Report of the Leisure Task Group 
 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Holland District Council  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review of  
 
 

Leisure provision within the District regarding present and future provision 
 
 
 
 

An Overview and Scrutiny Review undertaken by the Leisure Task Group on 
behalf of The Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel                                       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 2014 

Page 9



Contents  
 
 

1. Introduction 

2. Scope of the Review 

3. Membership of Task Group 

4. Background to Review 

5. Method of Review 

6. Summary of Findings 

7. Conclusions and Recommendations 

8. Financial implications of recommendations 

9. Main Sources of Information and individuals contacted during the Review 

10. Abbreviations 

11. Appendices 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



1. Introduction 
 
         The Council at its meeting on 11 April 2012 received a presentation from 

the Assistant Director for Finance regarding the future options for the 
Castle Sports Complex.  Members discussed the possibilities and agreed 
that no further work should be undertaken on the project at present and 
that the financial position should be reviewed in 2 years time.  The 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel recently 
agreed to set up a Task Group to look at this issue. 

 
         This will allow the task group to provide positive recommendations for both 

the short and long term strategy and provision of leisure services within 
the District and work toward the future provision following the end of the 
current contract that expires in June 2018. 

 
2. Scope of the Review 
 

To make recommendations, regarding the present and future leisure     
provision in South Holland. 
 

1. By establishing what leisure provision the District Council presently 
provides, examining costs, resident satisfaction and competitiveness in 
order to identify ways of increasing income or reducing expenditure; 

 
2. To understand what the District Council wishes to provide and what the 
public and major employers need;  

 
3. To examine the options for future provision either to be supplied by the 
Council, the private sector or shared management. 

 
3. Membership of Task Group 
 

Councillor Aley. (Chairman) 
Councillor Dark. 
Councillor Perkins (Vice Chairman) 
Councillor Slade. 
Councillor Sneath 
Councillor S Wilkinson 
Councillor Casson 

 
4. Background to Review 
 
4.1   On 11 April 2012 Council received a presentation regarding future options 

relating to Castle Sports Complex. Members agreed that no further work 
should be undertaken on the project at that point in time and that the 
position should be reviewed in two years time. Members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel have been 
set up as a task group to look at this issue.  

  
         

Page 11



 
4.2   The task group was formed on 21 January 2014 with the purpose of 

making recommendations regarding the present and future leisure 
provision in South Holland. 

 
4.3   The terms of reference for the group are:  
 

1) Establish what leisure provision the district council currently provides, 
examine costs, resident satisfaction and competitiveness in order to 
identify ways of increasing income or reducing expenditure both in the 
short term and longer term; 

 
2) To understand what the district councils wishes to provide and what 
the public and major stakeholders need;  

 
3) To examine options for future leisure provision either to be supplied 
and managed by the Council, or operated by the private sector. 

 
4.4  The task group is made up of 8 Councillors from Performance Monitoring 

Panel and Policy Development Panel and they have been examining 
financial information on all leisure facilities, existing contractual details, 
customer satisfaction data as well as investigating current barriers to 
accessing the sites as well as investigating what the public, employees and 
stakeholders may require from South Holland District Council leisure 
provision in the short and long term.  

 
4.5  To date members have reduced the initial scope of the project from all 

leisure and recreation facilities down to Castle sports complex, essentially 
omitting Ayscoughfee Hall Museum, South Holland Centre, and Halley 
Stewart playing field, as these were being looked at by other project groups. 
 

4.6  The task group have examined the various elements of the Castle Sports 
Complex budgets to establish true cost of leisure provision including i.e. 
grounds maintenance, building maintenance and management costs. In 
addition members have analysed participation and income figures provided 
by the centre to establish a better understanding of current provision and 
take up. The task group identified that some of the budgeted costs 
associated with the Castle Sports Complex are not true costs for example; 
grounds maintenance figures may include elements of maintenance of other 
sites in the district which do not have an identifiable budget code. In 
Appendix D, shows a summary of the 2013-14 figures for the Castle income 
and expenditure 

 
4.7 Members have reviewed the current contractual arrangements as well as 

sought advice on other potential contractual agreements that exist in the 
market place. This original contract was established in January 1998 and 
has since been extended. In 2013 under the current contract an 
amendment was made to allow the operator to operate as a Not for Profit 
Distributing Organisation (NPDO) which resulted in a saving to the council 
of £40,000 per year.  Members found that the three buildings under this 

Page 12



contract are managed by Leisure in the Community (formerly Leisure 
Connections) for less than £150,000 per annum. The contract was 
considered to offer good value and is in place until 2018, a copy of the Audit 
commission report, showing that the contract is a good deal, is shown in 
Appendix E. This is a comparison on cost alone and doesn’t take account 
level of service. From 2018 the contract will need to be retendered or 
brought in house. Members have hard copies of the current contract to be 
reviewed. 

 
4.8 The current condition of the assets has also been established by working 

with officers in the Asset Management Team. It is clear that while the 
buildings are structurally sound they are not fit for purpose.  It should be 
noted that these buildings are of the 1970’s and are therefore not reliably 
as energy efficient compared to building of today’s standards. As with any 
building, major components such as roofs and boilers have a limited. In 
additions to this, the layout of the building does lead to inflexibility to 
change with the current requirement for users of the premises, i.e. street fit 
classes etc.  

 
4.9  From costings established in 2011 refurbishment to Castle Sports Complex 

and swimming pool were estimated at £3.78m, a new pool, gym facilities 
and a refurbishment to the sports hall was estimated at £8.7m while a 
complete replacement of all facilities was circa £11.3m 

 
4.10 It should be noted that the pool was opened in 1974, is costly to run and 

major works to the building would be required to make it efficient and 
compliant in the future. In addition Castle Sports Complex while structurally 
sound is extremely inefficient and costly to run (particularly in light of 
increasing energy costs) this is only exacerbated by the fact that the site is 
split in two making overheads and staffing costly. The building itself is 
inflexible in terms of changes to current leisure trends and sports provision. 
 

4.11 The task group also consulted with the Planning Manager who has 
determined that S106 (Section 106) and CIL (Community Infrastructure 
Levy) could be explored. However in the case of S106, should the Castle 
field be sold for housing for example, a stipulation could be enforced where 
by the monies collected could be used for new leisure provision. In the 
case of CIL, this is a charge that districts are able to place on 
developments in their area, therefore a tool to help deliver infrastructure to 
support development in the area. This could therefore be used to contribute 
towards a future leisure facility, however it is a rigorous process and none 
are in place in the district at this time.  

 
4.12 As part of the task group’s assessment, a number of visits were carried out 

to different leisure centres. The first visits were to South Holland District 
Council’s existing facilities to gain a greater understanding of current 
provision and operating standards.  

 
 
 

Page 13



4.13  Members concluded that the facilities were well utilised despite their age 
and appearance. Members concluded that the facilities were well utilised 
and showed value for money, despite their age and appearance. “In terms 
of participation, of the sites that were visited which have similar facilities to 
Castle the participation figures per year ranged from 196,88 (site without a 
sports hall) - 353,037. Total participation at Castle leisure centre and 
swimming pool for the year ending 1st April 2014 was 306,390. Given the 
age and condition of Castle facilities the participation figures compare well 
with usage at the other sites visited which had all had elements of 
refurbishment or were new builds within the last 10 years. Further more the 
sites with the higher participation figures within the range had dedicated 
purpose built exercise studios for large group classes which Castle in its 
current format does not have. In addition, for those sites visited, all 
reported large increases in participation following improvements which 
shows the potential for Castle to increase usage following investment, In 
addition, figures shown in Appendix D indicate how we compare with other 
authorities, within our same bench marking cluster. 

 
4.14 Members of the Task Group also visited 5 other facilities, within 

Lincolnshire and Norfolk. Two of these were refurbished (private sector 
operator), two were new build (private sector operator) and the last was an 
existing in house council facility. The task group issued a standard set of 
questions for both management and end users to each of the operators 
which can be found in Appendix B. 

 
4.15 It was evident from these visits and discussion at sites that any facilities 

(new build or refurbished) need to be based on evidence of need and 
demand foremost and that we should not be driven to provide quantity of 
facilities over quality, flexibility and income potential. Future proofing the 
facilities will be key in ensuring that maximum income can be achieved and 
so that the centre can adapt and change to leisure trends throughout the 
life of the building. 

 
4.16 As part of the initial remit of the task group was to consult and understand 

the needs of the public and major stakeholders including businesses and 
Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG’s), the group has commissioned 
research into current and non users to establish what the current barriers 
are to the usage of the centres. This assessment will then allow the task 
group to draw conclusions on what would need to be provided in the future 
to attract these people to utilise the facility. This approach was heavily 
endorsed by all the other providers surveyed during the recent visits. This 
work was not to establish a wish list of facilities but more to determine 
current barriers to participation and leisure trends. The company selected 
has been recommended and endorsed by Sport England and is called 
Leisure-net.org. The format for this will include online surveys of existing 
users as well as face to face surveys of non users, focus groups and 
stakeholder interviews. It is the intention that surveys will not only provide 
valuable insight in to what is required longer term, but will also provide 
short term improvements; which could be made providing that benefit and 
payback is favourable. This may include changes to the programming of 

Page 14



the centre where the contract allows or changes where the control and 
liability lies with the council where some small scale proportionate 
investment may be required. This consultation process is due to 
commence during September, following an initiation meeting with members 
from the task group which is planned during August.  

  
4.17 South Holland health profile Appendix C. This will be used by the task 

group when making short term recommendations around the target 
audience and programming activity at the centres. 

 
4.18 It is clear to the task group that there are a number of scenarios and 

considerations which will help determine potential future provision these 
include:  
 
1) ability to achieve external funding,  
2) ability to borrow or use reserves,  
3) ability to attract suitable private sector investment 
4) appetite of the council for risk transfer,  
5) contractual control requirements,  
6) level of investment  
7) future flexibility 
8) evidence of need and demand  
9) affordability and pricing structure 

 
Answering some or all of the above would help determine what type of 
management arrangement would be put in place i.e. in house, fully 
outsourced, Design Build Operate Maintain (DBOM) etc. and determine 
future revenue costs or potential income opportunities. This could include 
profit share as well as performance driven targets. 

 
4.19 In terms of next steps it is the intention of the task group to analyse the 

research which is being undertaken at the end of the summer and prepare 
a recommendations and a business case outlining all options available for 
future provision of leisure with full financial appraisal and funding options 
provided.  

 
5. Method of Review 
 
5.1   The review will be undertaken by a Task Group of 8 Councillors made up 

from the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel. 
 

Task Group meetings to be arranged to take place during the day, for a 
maximum of 90 minutes. 

 
5.2    What information is required? 
 

• Budget information on all leisure facilities to excluding the South Holland 
Centre and Ayscoughfee Hall; 

 

• Existing contract details including how they were awarded; 

Page 15



• Information on customer satisfaction; 
 

• What do the public / employees want?  
 

• What do Breckland, other Local Authorities, local schools and private 
facilities do locally? 

 
5.3 Who holds this information/ who do we need to speak to?  
 

• Transformation team; 

• CPBS; 

• Leisure Officers; 

• Other Local Authorities; 

• Portfolio Holders; 

• Legal Officer; 

• Communications Team; 

• Chamber of Commerce; 

• Community Development Officer. 
 

5.4 How will the information be gathered? 
 

• Requests; 

• Online; 

• Questionnaires;  

• Interviews in person or Skype/Video Conference 
 

5.5 Who will gather the information? 
 

• Members;  

• Lead Officer. 
 
6. Summary of Findings 
 
6.1 The task group have examined the various elements of the Castle budgets 

to establish true cost of leisure provision including i.e. grounds 
maintenance, building maintenance and management costs. 

 
6.2 Members have analysed participation and income figures provided by the 

centre to establish a better understanding of current provision and take up. 
 
6.3 The task group identified that some of the budgeted costs associated with 

Castle are not true costs for example; grounds maintenance figures may 
include elements of maintenance of other sits in the district which do not 
have an identifiable budget code. 

 
6.4 Members have reviewed the current contractual arrangements as well as 

sought advice on other potential contractual agreements that exist in the 
market place 

 

Page 16



6.5 This original contract was established in January 1998 and has since been 
extended. In 2013 under the current contract an amendment was made to 
allow the operator to operate as a Not for Profit Distributing Organisation 

 
6.6 The current condition of the assets has also been established. It is clear 

that while the buildings are structurally sound they are not fit for purpose. 
They are not energy efficient and the life of the major components such as 
roofs and boilers are limited. It should be noted that the pool was opened 
in 1974, is costly to run and major works to the building would be required 
to make it efficient and compliant in the future. ) this is only exacerbated by 
the fact that the site is split in two making overheads and staffing costly. 
The building itself is inflexible in terms of changes to current leisure trends 
and sports provision. 

 
6.7 The task group also consulted with the Planning Manager who has 

determined that S106 and CIL could be explored as assisting with future 
funding. Details of what a section106 & CIL means and examples are 
given in Appendix  F. 

 
6.8 Members concluded that South Holland District Council’s facilities were 

well utilised despite their age and appearance and where given clear value 
for money considering their age and design. 

 
6.9 It was evident from the visits and discussion at the various sites that any 

facilities (new build or refurbished) need to be based on evidence of need 
and demand. 

 
6.10 It was evident during the visits to other facilities where improved leisure 

facilities had been provided, that there was enthusiasm by the Executive 
Members and senior managers at those authorities to make those 
improvements. 

 
6.11   It has been recognised that the District Council has a significant role to 

play in the health and wellbeing of its residents. While South Holland 
District Council is the provider of the key strategic leisure sites in the 
district, it is not the only provider and therefore in order to create the most 
opportunities for our residents to take part in sport and physical activity as 
preventative measure to combat ill health it is noted that the district needs 
to establish its position in the market place so as not to compete with 
potential high end leisure providers or local community clubs with existing 
facilities. 

 

• Long term benefits; 

• Improved leisure provision; 

• Reduced cost of leisure provision; 

• Provision of more opportunities for residents to undertake physical 
activity; 

• Increased user numbers and participating groups at the centre 

• Increased customer satisfaction;  

• Improved health and wellbeing our residents of SHDC; 

Page 17



• Complimentary facilities to those provided by others in the district; 

•  A robust operating model / contract management arrangements in place 

•  Energy efficient facilities; 

•  Reduced utility costs and improved carbon footprint; 

•  Flexible facilities which can adapt to trends in leisure and therefore be 
 future proof;  

•  To make it an attraction to both people and businesses considering 
 moving and investing in the area. 

 
6.12  It was noted during the visits to the current SHDC facilities, how well they 

where used, even thought it  was recognised they where showing signs of 
aging, and any improvements would only improve usage and bring benefit 
to the community 

 
7. Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
1) That Members note the contents of the report; 

 
2) That the task group is supported by members to enable them to 

continue to make recommendations regarding current short term 
leisure provision improvements, an example of this is looking at the 
current parking facilities at the Castle Sports Complex, to enable 
greater access and potential increase in customers; 

 
3) To make recommendations regarding the future leisure provision in 

South Holland District Council following the contract end in 2018 
taking on board the needs of key stakeholders, the Council, its 
residents and current health profile of the district; 

 
4) To ensure that plans and facilities are in place, ready for when the 

current contract provider ends in 2018; 
 
5) That inclusion of a new leisure facility in South Holland becoming a 

priority within the Corporate Plan;  
 
6) That a provisional sum is provided to the Task Group, in the sum of 

£20,500 to allow a full consultation exercise to be carried out.   
 
8. Financial Implications of Recommendations 
 
8.1   There will be some associated cost for carrying out the Stakeholder and 

Resident consultation exercise, which is due to commence in September. 
        There are no further financial implications identified at this time, Actual 

funding for any future provision, will arise from and be identified through 
the undertaking of a full business case. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



9. Main Sources of Information and individuals contacted during the 
Review to date 

 

• Other Local Authorities - Visit to other centres, notably- 
1. Castle Sports (Spalding) 
2. Peel Leisure (Long Sutton) 
3. Monks house.(Spalding) 
4. Sleaford Leisure centre(Sleaford) 
5. Louth Leisure centre (Louth) 
6. Breckland Leisure Centre (Dereham) 
7. Thetford Leisure centre (Thetford) 
8. Wymondham Leisure Centre ( South Norfolk) 
 

• Portfolio Holders- Nick Worth-Localism & Big Society; 
 

• Communities Development manager- Contract issues and leisure 
provision; 

 

• Asset and Estate management surveyors- on Procurement and asset 
control; 

 

• Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd - Finance information 
and budget control measure; 

 

• Leisure Officers - To assist with visits and also data on number of 
attendees to centres etc, plus budget control; 

 

• Leisure-net for public consultation exercise 
 
10. Abbreviations 
          
          NPDO   Not for Profit Distributing Organisation 
          DBOM  Design Build Operate Maintain 
          VC         Video Conferencing 
          DBOM  Design Build Operate Maintain  
          CCG’s   Clinical Commissioning Group 
          CIL       Community infrastructure Levy 
          NPDO   Not for Profit Distributing Organisation  
 
11. Appendices 
 
        Appendix A   Leisure facilities visit questionnaire. 

         Appendix B   SHDC Health Profile 2013 
 
         Appendix C   Summary of income & expenditure for 2013-14 
 
         Appendix D   Audit Commission bench marking report 
 
         Appendix E   Section106 and CIL definition 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 
Leisure Facilities Visits Questions 
 
Questions for management. 
 

• How is the facility run, what is its current management arrangement? 

• What did the area previously have in place? 

• How is the facility funded? 

• What is the footfall? 

• What types of groups use the facility? 

• Are the facilities right for the area, do they fulfil the requirements of the area, 
are there additional facilities you would like to provide? 

• Do local schools use the facilities; are these both primary and secondary? 

• What other groups use the facilities? 

• What types of charging structures do you have? 

• What parking facilities do you provide and are they suitably? 

• Are there any catering facilities, if so how is this structured in conjunction with 
the management of the Leisure Centre? 

• What temperature do you run the pool water and the air temperature at? Is 
this set for a particular user i.e. swimming clubs etc 

• How the building currently heated? 

• How is the pool heated? 

• How is the pool sanitised and were other methods considered for sanitising 
the pool ? 

• How are the other services provided? 
 
 
Questions for users of facilities 
 

• Why are you here,  
1. To watch someone else participate 
2. To participate 
3. To help 

 
� How far have you travelled today and by what means? 
� Do you feel the parking facilities are satisfactory here? 
� Do you get charged for parking here? 
� How often do you use the facilities? 
� What facilities are you using today? 
� What other facilities do you use here? 
� What do you like about the facilities? 
� What don’t you like about the facilities? 
� Do you think the swimming pool temperature is satisfactory or is it too 
hot/cold? 
� Do you feel the facilities are well maintained? 
� Do you feel the facilities are kept clean? 
� What could be improved here? 
� What additional facilities would you like? 
� What would be your ideal facility 

• Are the facilities right for the area, do they fulfil the requirements of the area, 
are there additional facilities you would like to provide? 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Image found and displayed.

#Name?







© Crown Copyright and database rights 2013, Ordnance Survey 100016969

Other map data © Collins Bartholomew.

©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
y
rig

h
t 2

0
1
3

South Holland

South Holland at a glance

The health of people in South Holland is varied 

compared with the England average. Deprivation is 

lower than average, however about 2,400 children live 

in poverty. Life expectancy for both men and women is 

similar to the England average.

Life expectancy is 5.0 years lower for men in the most  

deprived areas of South Holland than in the least  

deprived areas.

Over the last 10 years, all cause mortality rates have 

fallen. Early death rates from cancer and from heart 

disease and stroke have fallen.

In Year 6, 22.3% of children are classified as obese, 

worse than the average for England. Levels of GCSE 

attainment and smoking in pregnancy are worse than 

hospital stays among those under 18 is better than the 

the England average. The level of alcohol-specific 

England average. 

The estimated level of adult obesity is worse than the 

England average. The estimated level of adult smoking 

is better than the England average. The rate of road 

injuries and deaths is worse than the England average. 

Rates of sexually transmitted infections and hospital 

stays for alcohol related harm are better than the 

England average. 

Priorities in South Holland include alcohol, tobacco and 

obesity. For more information, see 

www.research-lincs.org.uk or www.lincolnshire.gov.uk







South Holland  - 24th September 2013

Population 88,000

 

This profile gives a picture of health in 
this area. It is designed to help local 
government and health services 
understand their community’s needs, so 
that they can work to improve people’s 
health and reduce health inequalities.   
 

Visit the Health Profiles website for: 

 Profiles of all local authorities in England 

 Interactive maps – see how health varies 
between areas 

 More health indicator information 

 Links to more community health profiles 
and tools 

 
Health Profiles are produced by Public Health England.   
 
 

www.healthprofiles.info  
 

Mid-2011 population estimate

Source: Office for National Statistics   © Crown Copyright 2013

Published on 24th September 2013

H
e

a
lth

 P
ro

file
 2

0
1
3

Tydd Gote

Boston

Spalding

Wisbech
Crowland

Holbeach

Long Sutton

Clay Lake

Cowbit

Deeping St Nicholas

Donington

Fleet Hargate

Gedney Drove End

Gedney Dyke

Gedney Hill

Gosberton

Holbeach Clough

Holbeach Drove

Holbeach St Johns

Holbeach St Marks

Hop Pole

Moulton

Moulton Chapel

Pinchbeck

Pinchbeck West

Quadring

Risegate

Surfleet

Sutton Bridge

Weston

Weston Hills

Whaplode Drove

A15

A16

A47(T)

A
1
6
(T

)

A151

A52

A17

A
1
0
7
3

A
1
1
3
9

A152

A1121

A605

A
1
4
1

A
1
1
3
7

A
1
10

1

A1122

Page 23

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX B

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text
  

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text

she15ell
Typewritten Text



N

N

South Holland  - 24th September 2013

a national view

Health inequalities:

a local view

This map shows differences in deprivation levels in this area 
based on local quintiles (of the Index of Multiple Deprivation 
2010 by Lower Super Output Area).  The darkest coloured 
areas are the most deprived in this area.

© Crown Copyright 2013www.healthprofiles.info

This map shows differences in deprivation levels in this area 
based on national quintiles (of the Index of Multiple Deprivation 
2010 by Lower Super Output Area).  The darkest coloured 
areas are some of the most deprived areas in England.

1 - most 2 3 4 5 - least 

0 2 4 Miles

0 2 4 Miles

©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yr

ig
h
t
an

d
 d

a
ta

b
a
se

 r
ig

h
ts

 2
0
1

3,
 O

rd
na

n
ce

 S
u
rv

ey
 1

0
0

01
6
9
6

9
©

 C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p

yr
ig

h
t
an

d
 d

a
ta

b
a
se

 r
ig

h
ts

 2
0

1
3,

 O
rd

na
n
ce

 S
u
rv

ey
 1

0
0

01
6
9
6

9

This chart shows the percentage of the population in 
England and this area who live in each of these quintiles.

The lines on this chart represent the Slope Index of 
Inequality, which is a modelled estimate of the range in 
life expectancy at birth across the whole population of 
this area from most to least deprived. Based on death 
rates in 2006-2010, this range is 5 years for males and 
3.2 years for females. The points on this chart show the 
average life expectancy in each tenth of the population of 
this area. 

Deprivation:

deprived quintiledeprived quintile

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

England South Holland

%
 R

e
s

id
e

n
ts

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

Li
fe

 E
xp

e
ct

an
cy

 a
t 

B
ir

th
 (

ye
ar

s)

Female Inequality Slope Female Life Expectancy
Male Inequality Slope Male Life Expectancy

Most Deprived Least Deprived

Legend as above Page 24



South Holland  - 24th September 2013

Trend 1 compares rates of death, at all ages and from 
all causes, in this area with those for England.

Trend 2 compares rates of early death from heart 
disease and stroke (in people under 75) in this area 
with those for England.

Trend 3 compares rates of early death from cancer (in 
people under 75) in this area with those for England.

Health inequalities:

changes over time

Trend 1:

All age, all cause mortality

Trend 3:

Early death rates from cancer

Trend 2:

Early death rates from heart disease and stroke

Health inequalities:

ethnicity

This chart shows the percentage of hospital 
admissions in 2011/12 that were 
emergencies for each ethnic group in this 
area. A high percentage of emergency 
admissions may reflect some patients not 
accessing or receiving the care most suited 
to managing their conditions. By comparing 
the percentage in each ethnic group in this 
area with that of the whole population of 
England (represented by the horizontal line) 
possible inequalities can be identified.

Figures based on small numbers of admissions have 
been suppressed to avoid any potential disclosure of 
information about individuals.

95% confidence 
intervals

© Crown Copyright 2013 www.healthprofiles.info

These graphs show how changes in death rates for this 
area compare with changes for the whole of England.  
Data points on the graph are mid-points of 3-year 
averages of yearly rates. For example the dot labelled 
2003 represents the 3-year period 2002 to 2004.

England average (all ethnic groups)

South Holland

Males:

Females:

A
g

e
-s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 r
a

te
/1

0
0

,0
0

0

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

250

350

450

550

650

750

850

950

1050

1150

1250

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Years

England       South Holland               

England       South Holland               

A
g

e
-s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 r
a

te
/1

0
0

,0
0

0

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

15

35

55

75

95

115

135

155

175

195

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Years

England       South Holland               

A
g

e
-s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 r
a

te
/1

0
0

,0
0

0

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

15

35

55

75

95

115

135

155

175

195

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Years

England       South Holland               

All ethnic 

groups
White Mixed Asian Black Chinese Other Unknown

8800 8462 39 39 15 182 Local number of emergency admissions

36.4% 37.1% 45.7% 39.8% 45.6% 18.1% Local value

40.6% 41.1% 40.0% 45.3% 44.4% 38.0% 46.4% 30.1% England value

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s

: 
a

g
e

-s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Page 25



Domain
Local No.

Per Year

Local 

Value

Eng 

Avg

Eng 

Worst

Eng 

Best

1 Deprivation 0 0.0 20.3 83.7 0.0

2 Proportion of children in poverty 2395 16.0 21.1 45.9 6.2

3 Statutory homelessness 15 0.4 2.3 9.7 0.0

4 GCSE achieved (5A*-C inc. Eng & Maths) 545 54.6 59.0 31.9 81.0

5 Violent crime 841 9.9 13.6 32.7 4.2

6 Long term unemployment 290 5.4 9.5 31.3 1.2

7 Smoking in pregnancy ‡ 163 18.4 13.3 30.0 2.9

8 Starting breast feeding ‡ 675 75.5 74.8 41.8 96.0

9 Obese Children (Year 6) ‡ 179 22.3 19.2 28.5 10.3

10 Alcohol-specific hospital stays (under 18) 5 30.2 61.8 154.9 12.5

11 Teenage pregnancy (under 18) ‡ 46 29.6 34.0 58.5 11.7

12 Adults smoking n/a 14.7 20.0 29.4 8.2

13 Increasing and higher risk drinking n/a 23.2 22.3 25.1 15.7

14 Healthy eating adults n/a 27.4 28.7 19.3 47.8

15 Physically active adults n/a 55.7 56.0 43.8 68.5

16 Obese adults ‡ n/a 26.9 24.2 30.7 13.9

17 Incidence of malignant melanoma 13 13.0 14.5 28.8 3.2

18 Hospital stays for self-harm 118 148.4 207.9 542.4 51.2

19 Hospital stays for alcohol related harm ‡ 2007 1630 1895 3276 910

20 Drug misuse 164 3.0 8.6 26.3 0.8

21 People diagnosed with diabetes 5159 7.3 5.8 8.4 3.4

22 New cases of tuberculosis 4 4.7 15.4 137.0 0.0

23 Acute sexually transmitted infections 233 264 804 3210 162

24 Hip fracture in 65s and over 120 432 457 621 327

25 Excess winter deaths ‡ 54 17.5 19.1 35.3 -0.4

26 Life expectancy – male n/a 79.4 78.9 73.8 83.0

27 Life expectancy – female n/a 83.5 82.9 79.3 86.4

28 Infant deaths 3 3.3 4.3 8.0 1.1

29 Smoking related deaths 162 188 201 356 122

30 Early deaths: heart disease and stroke 81 68.6 60.9 113.3 29.2

31 Early deaths: cancer 122 103.8 108.1 153.2 77.7

32 Road injuries and deaths 52 58.8 41.9 125.1 13.1

L
ife

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

n
d

c
a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

Indicator England Range

O
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 a
n
d

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's

h
e
a
lth

A
d
u
lts

' h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

lif
e
s
ty

le

D
is

e
a
s
e
 a

n
d

p
o
o
r 

h
e
a
lth

South Holland  - 24th September 2013

Health summary for 

The chart below shows how the health of people in this area compares with the rest of England. This area's result for each 
indicator is shown as a circle. The average rate for England is shown by the black line, which is always at the centre of the 
chart. The range of results for all local areas in England is shown as a grey bar. A red circle means that this area is 
significantly worse than England for that indicator; however, a green circle may still indicate an important public health 
problem.

Significantly worse than England average

Not significantly different from England average

Significantly better than England average

‡ For comparison with PHOF Indicators, please go to the following link:  

England Average

25th 
Percentile

75th 
Percentile

England 
Worst

England 
Best

© Crown Copyright 2013

South Holland

www.healthprofiles.info

Indicator Notes 

1 % people in this area living in 20% most deprived areas in England, 2010 2 % children (under 16) in families receiving means-tested benefits & low income, 
2010 3 Crude rate per 1,000 households, 2011/12 4 % at Key Stage 4, 2011/12 5 Recorded violence against the person crimes, crude rate per 1,000 population, 
2011/12 6 Crude rate per 1,000 population aged16-64, 2012 7 % mothers smoking in pregnancy where status is known, 2011/12 8 % mothers initiating breast 
feeding where status is known, 2011/12 9 % school children in Year 6 (age 10-11), 2011/12 10 Persons under 18 admitted to hospital due to alcohol-specific 
conditions, crude rate per 100,000 population, 2007/08 to 2009/10 (pooled) 11 Under-18 conception rate per 1,000 females aged 15-17 (crude rate) 2009-2011 
12 % adults aged 18 and over, 2011/12 13 % aged 16+ in the resident population, 2008-2009 14 % adults, modelled estimate using Health Survey for England 
2006-2008 15 % adults achieving at least 150 mins physical activity per week, 2012 16 % adults, modelled estimate using Health Survey for England 2006-2008 
17 Directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population, aged under 75, 2008-2010 18 Directly age sex standardised rate per 100,000 population, 2011/12 19 
Directly age sex standardised rate per 100,000 population, 2010/11 20 Estimated users of opiate and/or crack cocaine aged 15-64, crude rate per 1,000 
population, 2010/11 21 % people on GP registers with a recorded diagnosis of diabetes 2011/12 22 Crude rate per 100,000 population, 2009-2011 23 Crude rate 
per 100,000 population, 2012 (chlamydia screening coverage may influence rate) 24 Directly age and sex standardised rate for emergency admissions, per 
100,000 population aged 65 and over, 2011/12 25 Ratio of excess winter deaths (observed winter deaths minus expected deaths based on non-winter deaths) to 
average non-winter deaths 1.08.08-31.07.11 26 At birth, 2009-2011 27 At birth, 2009-2011 28 Rate per 1,000 live births, 2009-2011 29 Directly age standardised 
rate per 100,000 population aged 35 and over, 2009-2011 30 Directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75, 2009-2011 31 Directly age 
standardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75, 2009-2011 32 Rate per 100,000 population, 2009-2011 
 
More information is available at www.healthprofiles.info Please send any enquiries to healthprofiles@phe.gov.uk 
 
© Crown copyright, 2013. You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government  
Licence. To view this licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence 

E07000140

www.healthprofiles.info/PHOF

Page 26



Castle Sports Complex - Summary of Income and Expenditure 2013/14

Revised 
Budget

£

Actual 
Expenditure

£
Variance

£
Sports Hall Expenditure 249,500 601,986 (352,486)

Income (5,300) (5,050) (250)
Sports Hall Net Cost 244,200 596,936 (352,736)

Swimming Pool Expenditure 174,757 253,149 (78,392)
Income (5,300) (5,000) (300)
Swimming Pool Net Cost 169,457 248,149 (78,692)

Castlefield Expenditure 61,100 55,437 5,663
Income 0 (1,620) 1,620
Castlefield Net Cost 61,100 53,817 7,283

Summary
Castle Sports Complex Total Expenditure 485,357 910,571 (425,214)

Total Income (10,600) (11,670) 1,070
Castle Sports Complex Net Cost 474,757 898,901 (424,144)

P
age 27

she15ell
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX C



SHDC : Financial Year : 2013/2014

Period 1 : 12

Code Description

Original
Budget

£

Revised 
Budget

£

Profile
Budget

£

Actual 
Expenditure

£
Variance

£

POs
Outstanding

£

Remaining
Budget

£
10000 Gross Pay 9,700 9,700 9,700 9,637 63 0 63
10050 Employer's NI Contributions 700 700 700 711 (11) 0 (11)
10060 Employer's Retirement Benefit Cost 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,330 70 0 70

10080 Retirement Benefits - IAS 19 
Adjustment

0 0 0 65 (65) 0 (65)

10090 Agency Staff 0 0 0 25 (25) 0 (25)
20010 Buildings Maintenance - Responsive 4,900 2,900 2,900 1,158 1,742 0 1,742

20020 Buildings Maintenance - 
Programmed

2,000 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0 2,000

29010 Premises Insurance 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,728 (28) 0 (28)
35010 Car Allowance - Lump Sum 100 100 100 169 (69) 0 (69)
35020 Car Allowance - Mileage 100 100 100 408 (308) 0 (308)
40010 Furniture and Equipment 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,000 500 0 500
42020 Telephones 200 200 200 234 (34) 0 (34)
44020 Employees Subsistence 100 100 100 0 100 0 100
44030 Course Fees 400 400 400 133 267 0 267
45020 Books, Magazines and Other 

Publications
100 100 100 48 52 0 52

45090 Insurance 0 0 0 82 (82) 0 (82)
50810 Compass Point Business Services 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,231 (31) 0 (31)
50820 Leisure Management 86,600 80,600 80,600 81,893 (1,293) 0 (1,293)
55010 Recharges to/from support services 600 600 600 459 141 0 141

60010 Depreciation on assets 143,200 143,200 143,200 151,708 (8,508) 0 (8,508)
60205 Revaluation Losses on Assets 0 0 0 346,967 (346,967) 0 (346,967)
80150 Costs Recharged to Outside Bodies (5,300) (5,300) (5,300) (5,050) (250) 0 (250)

252,200 244,200 244,200 596,936 (352,736) 0 (352,736)

4140 Sports Hall

P
age 28



SHDC : Financial Year : 2013/2014

Period 1 : 12

Code Description

Original
Budget

£

Revised 
Budget

£

Profile
Budget

£

Actual 
Expenditure

£
Variance

£

POs
Outstanding

£

Remaining
Budget

£
10000 Gross Pay 9,800 9,800 9,800 9,767 33 0 33
10050 Employer's NI Contributions 700 700 700 715 (15) 0 (15)
10060 Employer's Retirement Benefit Cost 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,357 43 0 43

10080 Retirement Benefits - IAS 19 
Adjustment

0 0 0 65 (65) 0 (65)

10090 Agency Staff 0 0 0 3,940 (3,940) 0 (3,940)
20010 Buildings Maintenance - Responsive 8,100 2,100 2,100 1,660 440 0 440

20020 Buildings Maintenance - 
Programmed

4,000 4,000 4,000 68 3,932 0 3,932

29010 Premises Insurance 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,709 91 0 91
35010 Car Allowance - Lump Sum 100 100 100 169 (69) 0 (69)
35020 Car Allowance - Mileage 200 200 200 408 (208) 0 (208)
40010 Furniture and Equipment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 0
40210 Clothing Uniforms And Laundry 300 300 300 0 300 0 300
42020 Telephones 300 300 300 146 154 0 154
45090 Insurance 0 0 0 83 (83) 0 (83)
50310 Lincolnshire Legal Services 0 4,157 4,157 4,174 (17) 0 (17)
50810 Compass Point Business Services 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,231 (31) 0 (31)
50820 Leisure Management 86,600 80,600 80,600 80,450 150 0 150
55010 Recharges to/from support services 600 600 600 459 141 0 141

60010 Depreciation on assets 64,500 64,500 64,500 71,916 (7,416) 0 (7,416)
60205 Revaluation Losses on Assets 0 0 0 71,831 (71,831) 0 (71,831)
80150 Costs Recharged to Outside Bodies (5,300) (5,300) (5,300) (5,000) (300) 0 (300)

177,300 169,457 169,457 248,149 (78,692) 0 (78,692)

4145 Swimming Pool

P
age 29



SHDC : Financial Year : 2013/2014

Period 1 : 12

Code Description

Original
Budget

£

Revised 
Budget

£

Profile
Budget

£

Actual 
Expenditure

£
Variance

£

POs
Outstanding

£

Remaining
Budget

£
10000 Gross Pay 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,265 35 0 35
10050 Employer's NI Contributions 0 0 0 42 (42) 0 (42)
10060 Employer's Retirement Benefit Cost 300 300 300 271 29 0 29

10080 Retirement Benefits - IAS 19 
Adjustment

0 0 0 8 (8) 0 (8)

20010 Buildings Maintenance - Responsive 4,100 4,100 4,100 1,139 2,961 0 2,961

28010 Grounds Maintenance Contract 
(External)

800 800 800 172 628 0 628

28020 Grounds Maintenance Recharge 50,400 50,400 50,400 50,400 0 0 0
35010 Car Allowance - Lump Sum 100 100 100 0 100 0 100
35020 Car Allowance - Mileage 0 0 0 (1) 1 0 1
40010 Furniture and Equipment 800 800 800 (895) 1,695 1,400 295
40030 Materials and Consumables 700 700 700 490 210 210 0
45090 Insurance 0 0 0 11 (11) 0 (11)
50810 Compass Point Business Services 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,164 36 0 36
55010 Recharges to/from support services 400 400 400 372 28 0 28

81530 Other Hire Fees (1,900) (1,900) (1,900) (923) (977) 0 (977)
82030 Rents - General 0 0 0 (120) 120 0 120
83340 HRA Rents - Land 0 0 0 (1,500) 1,500 0 1,500

59,200 59,200 59,200 52,894 6,306 1,610 4,696

4160 Castlefield

P
age 30



Source: Audit Commission (Communities and Local Government - Revenue Outturn RO5)

This is the total expenditure on sports and recreation facilities including golf courses (Revenue Outturn (RO5) form, column 3, total 
expenditure). This is expressed as pounds (£) per head of the total resident population, from Office of National Statistics mid-year population 
estimates. Gross domestic product (GDP) deflators have been used to allow real term comparisons over time.

Spend on sports and recreation facilities including golf courses per head

P
age 31

she15ell
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX D



Reporting Name 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Spend on sports and recreation facilities 
including golf courses per head

£8.33 per head £7.08 per head £5.83 per head £6.76 per head £4.65 per head £4.44 per head

P
age 32



APPENDIX E 

 

What is a Section 106 planning obligation? 

Planning obligations are legal contracts made under section 106 of the 1990 Town 
and Country Planning Act. They are generally entered into by agreement between 
councils and landowners, although a landowner may also offer a unilateral, "one-
sided", s106 obligation. 

Planning obligations are linked to a planning application decision, made either by the 
local planning authority or by the Planning Inspectorate in the case of an appeal 
against a refusal of planning permission. The planning obligation relates to the land 
within the planning application, rather than the person or organisation that develops 
the land.  It is therefore recorded as a land charge, and the obligations under it run 
with the land ownership until they are fully complied with, often indefinitely. 

Planning Obligations are used for three purposes to: 

• prescribe the nature of development to comply with policy (for example, 
requiring a given portion of housing to be affordable), 

• compensate for loss or damage created by a development (for example, loss 
of open space), or 

• mitigate a development's impact (for example, through contributions to 
mitigate against harm to the Special Protection Area). 

An example, if land at Monks House playing field was to be sold for a housing 
development, any 106 agreement could stipulate what monies could be used for new 
leisure facilities, as a replacement for the loss of the playing field. 

What is a CIL –Community Infrastructure Levy. 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy is a planning charge, introduced by the Planning 
Act 2008 as a tool for local authorities in England and Wales to help deliver 
infrastructure to support the development of their area. It came into force on 6 April 
2010 through the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. Development 
may be liable for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), if your 
local planning authority has chosen to set a charge in its area. 
These CIL funds can be collected together to fund infrastructure to support 
development in the area. 

Once planning permission is granted, collecting authorities will issue applicants with 
a levy liability notice. Applicants should then assume liability to pay the levy charge 
prior to commencement of development by sending a completed assumption of 
liability form (‘Form 1: Assumption of Liability’) to the collecting authority. 

A liable party who subsequently wishes to withdraw or transfer their liability must 
complete either ‘Form 3: Withdrawal of Assumption of Liability’ or ‘Form 4: Transfer 
of Liability’ and send this to the collecting authority. 

The levy charge becomes due when development commences. A commencement 
notice must be issued to the collecting authority (Form 6: Commencement Notice’) 

Page 33



and all owners of the relevant land to notify them of the intended commencement 
date of the development. The collecting authority will then send a Demand Notice to 
the person or persons who have assumed liability. 

 

These reforms ensure that planning obligations and the CIL operate in a 
complementary way. 

The new regulations limit the use of planning obligations in three ways. 

1.    planning obligations entered into after from 6 April 2010 must meet three new 
legal tests. For developments that are capable of being charged the CIL, planning 
obligations must be: 

• necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms 
• directly related to the development and 
• fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development 

These are also set out as policy tests in paragraph 204 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (the NPPF). 

2.    to ensure that the use of planning obligations and the CIL does not overlap, 
planning obligations cannot be used to fund infrastructure that the Council has 
included in its CIL infrastructure funding list (known as its 123 list).  Developers 
cannot therefore be asked to pay twice for the same item of infrastructure. 

3.    from 6 April 2015, or sooner if a council introduces the CIL in their area before 
this date, councils may not use planning obligations as a tariff. This is because from 
that date, councils cannot pool more than five planning obligation contributions 
(counted back from April 2010) for infrastructure that is capable of being funded by 
the CIL. 

Planning obligations will continue to play an important role in making individual 
developments acceptable through site-specific infrastructure such as highways 
improvements.  Affordable housing will also continue to be delivered through 
planning obligations rather than the CIL. Councils can also continue to pool 
contributions for measures that cannot be funded through the CIL. 

In theory a CIL could be used to collect monies from development to contribute 
towards something like a leisure facility. 
It should be noted that there would be a rigorous process to go through to adopt a 
CIL and none were in place within SHDC at this time. 

Page 34



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business 

Development and Executive Director of Commissioning and Governance 
 
To: Cabinet – 7 October 2014 
 
(Author: Kim Parks – Senior Performance Analyst 
 
Subject: Performance Report for Quarter 1 2014-15 
 
Purpose: To provide an update of delivery against our 2011-15 Corporate Plan for the 

period 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014 
 

Recommendations:  
 
1) To note the content of the report 
 
2) To agree the revised style 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Following the creation of the bespoke data collection system over a period of months, 

introduction in full was available to all relevant Officers in December 2013 this the allowed 
the agreed new report templates to be populated. 

 
1.2 The Performance Report for Quarter 1 attached covers delivery against the Corporate 

Priorities and in addition Corporate Health indicators of interest to the public. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To make recommendations for change. 
 
2.2 To do nothing. 
 
2.3 The Portfolio Holder for Performance will be considering what further improvements (if any) 

in performance management would be advantageous. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Reporting against the delivery of our Corporate Priorities is good practice and part of the 

local government transparency agenda. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The new streamlined report will allow Scrutiny / Cabinet to focus attention on the delivery of 

our Corporate Priorities. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7.



5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.1.2 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.1.3 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1.4 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.1.5 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.1.6 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.1.7 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.1.8 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.1.9 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.1.10 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 No Wards / Communities affected.  
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None 
 

Background papers:- Performance Management and Reporting Review – Executive Briefing 10 
September 2013  

 
 
 
 

Page 36



Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Kim Kerrigan – Senior Performance Analyst 
Telephone Number: 01362 656866 
Email: kim.kerrigan@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director for Commissioning and 

Governance 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
 
 
Appendices attached to this report:   
Appendix A  Quarter 1 Cabinet Performance Report 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CABINET REPORT 

 
Quarter 1 2014/15

Page 39



 2

Foreword 
 
The quarterly performance report is a collection of our key indicator and projects that report in this quarter.  
Monitoring the performance of these indicators or projects helps us to endure we are on track to achieve 
the priorities we have set in our Corporate Plan, working together with our partners, to feed upwards as a 
‘golden thread’ to achieve the overall vision for the district. 
 
 
To find out more information on the way we manage or performance, please follow the link… Performance 
Management Framework 
 
Our Corporate Plan identified a vision and five key priorities for our district, to find out more information 
please follow the link… Corporate Plan 2011-2015 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
How to interpret this report 
 

R Performance has not been achieved or is below the anticipated outcome. 

A 
Performance is below level of expected performance but is within the tolerance of the anticipated 
outcome.  
Project is experiencing some minor issues but is still deliverable. 

G 
Performance is as expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or exceeded.  
Projects is on track for delivery within anticipated timescales and resource. 

 
Greyed out boxes: 
 

1 Previous reporting period only - this denotes that it is a new item so there is no previous data. 

2 
Previous reporting period and current reporting period - this denotes that no anticipated 
outcomes have been set for this indicator.  The reported outcomes help inform the shape and 
delivery of the service but the measure is not reporting on the 'performance' of the service. 

 
 
 

Page 40



 2 

 

SH 1 To Be a Forward Looking Council 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – House Building Project G G 
There are currently 2 schemes in progress - at Cowbit and 
Whaplode Drove. In addition, work is taking place to prepare the 
next sites for development 

Preparation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) G G 
Work on the preparation of the CIL remains closely linked to 
progress on the preparation of the Local Plan. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To maintain occupancy levels above 85% of 
the industrial units portfolio 

84.16% A 85.00% 91.33% G 
Quarter 1 and year to date average monthly 
occupancy rate is 91.33%. 

 
 
SUMMARY: Performance against occupancy levels has improved for the 1st quarter compared to end of 2013/14 and is well above its anticipated outcome.  It 
has significantly improved against the same time last year of 82%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



 3 

SH 2 To Enable our Communities 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Members Designated Budgets – Number of initiatives 
supported 

173 No. 27 No. 

To date 27 action forms have been processed, which have involved a total of  
31 district councillors from 17 district wards.  Approximately £23k has been 
spent on projects.  Quarter one projects included contributions towards the 
2012 Summer Challenge event, purchase of a defibrillator, provision of  
fencing, Spalding People’s Parade and Community Action projects etc. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Average time to re-let SHDC property 
14.00 
Days 

G 17.00 Days 
17.67 
Days 

A 
Within target, although we are continuing to 
monitor the effect of asbestos removal during 
each void. 

Number of affordable homes built 61 No. R 21 No. 25 No. G 25 homes delivered. On target. 
 
 
Summary: The performance measure ‘Average time to re-let SHDC property’ is slightly higher that the anticipated outcome for this quarter, this is due to 
continual removal of asbestos from properties prior to re-letting which is having an impact on our turnaround times. 
 
The performance measure ‘Number of Affordable Homes’ at Quarter 1 is well above the anticipated outcome set for this period.  If the measure continues to 
deliver at this rate it will hit its smash its Quarter 3 anticipated outcome but not year end.  However; the outcome of this measure is out of the council’s control 
and is reliant on builders delivering what is expected within set parameters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



 4 

 

SH 3 To Have Pride in South Holland 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Preparation of South East Lincolnshire Local Plan G G 

Following a review of the plan-preparation process governing the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, the Joint Committee has 
approved a revised 'local development scheme' (LDS) which 
proposes the preparation of a single Local Plan document 
(instead of two separate DPDs). The revised timetable for the 
submission of the Local Plan to the Planning Inspectorate, set 
out in the LDS, is December 2015.   

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of refuse that goes to recycling 30.40% A 32.00% 31.90%e G 

Recycling performance has improved over the 
last quarter, which has been attributed to the 
Green Bag Lottery, which has encourage 
more people to recycle. In order to maintain 
levels of high recycling performance, 
Recycling Officers will commence targeted 
campaigns in areas of low participation and 
high contamination. 

Kgs of residual waste collected 123.95 G 125.00 123.5 G 

The amount of residual waste collected has 
remained low this quarter. This is again 
attributed to the Green Bag Lottery where 
tonnage of materials collected for recycling 
has increased by 12% diverting waste from 
residual. In addition the kerbside textile trial 
has diverted a further 9 tonnes from residual 
collection. In order to sustain performance, 
further incentive schemes are planned in 
targeted areas and further expansion of the 

P
age 43



 5 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

textiles trail. 

Number of missed collections per 100,000 
households 

21.7 No. R 14 No. 29.10 No. R 

Due to the unexpected higher than expected 
outcome, the waste supervisor is to monitor 
the situation more intently. On initial 
investigation, it appears that the recycling 
crews are leaving more green bags that are 
presented with contamination than previously 
however this is without stickering the bags so 
the householders are aware why they have 
been left. The supervisor and recycling officers 
are working on crew training to minimise 
against contaminated bags being collected as 
missed. 

 
 
Summary: There has been a dip in the 'Number of missed collections per 1000 households' (refuse and recycling collections) due to crew error and not 
applying the correct stickers to bags notifying the householders reason for none collection.  Work is in progress to improve this measure with crew training 
being implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



 6 

SH 4 To Support our Local Economy 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Spalding Town Centre Regeneration G G 
Draft appraisal now received, next meeting currently being 
arranged 

Holbeach Town Centre Regeneration G G Still awaiting planning application from LCC 

S106 funding for Spalding Town Centre G G 
TCM recruitment still in progress. Meeting with Springfields now 
taken place and advertising campaign in planning stage. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of building regulations responded to with 
21 days of receipt 

98.50% G 100% 92.81% A 

1 Application out of 98 received were not 
processed in the required time, this is an 
improvement. A new method of allocating 
work has been introduced and it seems to 
have helped. Last month we achieved 90.82% 
and last year we achieved 96.30% 

% of building consultancy applications 
responded to within 21 days 

88.50% A 90.00% 84.00% A 
An increase in workload and re-organisation of 
staff have resulted in the target not being 
achieved. 

 
Summary: Originally, the anticipated outcome for ‘% of building regulations responded to with 21 days of receipt’ was 90% for 2013/14.  Due to the 
excellent final outturn figure for the same year, the anticipated outcome increased to 100% for 2014/15.  Despite not meeting this for Quarter 1 it is envisaged 
that we are still on target for year end. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



 7 

SH 5 To Develop Stronger Communities 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Coordinated Response to Anti Social Behaviour 
 

A A 

Countywide consultations took place in May in relation to the new 
Policy Framework to incorporate the changes in legislation 
through the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  
South Holland District Council has fed into this and is compiling 
an action plan to ensure that it can react effectively to the 
changes. A date is still to be set for County Wide training. 

CCTV A A 

Contractors are working on the final specifications for the 
infrastructure installation.  They have revisited locations and a 
final report of the detailed installation will be received for our 
consideration.  This is taking longer than hoped due to the nature 
of the area, the distances covered and the technology available 
to us.  They are working to ensure the best value & quality 
service will be provided. This will be  resolved soon once the 
technical issues are overcome. 

South Holland Centre – Developing young people’s engagement 
with LOV arts venues 

G G 

The LOV Young Peoples Project continues on track with good 
reports from both Paul Hamlyn Foundation and the Arts Council.  
LOV are now applying for continuation funding from 2015, and 
have also been encouraged to apply to the Esmee Fairburn 
Foundation.  Meanwhile the Youth Takeover group based at SH 
Centre are planning their 3rd Music in the Market Place event in 
August 2014, and will also be involved in a project to work with 
an orchestra, the London Sinfonia, in the Autumn.  The Centre is 
also hoping to work with Highly Sprung Theatre on a  schools 
project in Spring 2015 as part of the LOV YP Project. 

Health Initiatives A G 
Health Programmes which include; Walking for Health, Exercise 
Referral, Fit Kids and Kitchen Garden Project are all on track. Q1 
monitoring reports are due by 1st August. 

Kitchen Garden project G G 

2 new community gardens introduced at St Pauls Primary School 
and Holbeach (in partnership with In Bloom) engaging with 
approximately 50 volunteers. Total = 11 community gardens. 8 x 
6 week cooking courses ran; 2 x open community courses, 3 x 

P
age 46



 8 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

targeted courses with 3 youth centres, 1 x St Pauls Primary 
School,  2 x Pre School Learning Alliance (Donington and Sutton 
Bridge). 5 community awareness events have been held; one 
session as part of the Fit Kids programme, taster session at 
Holbeach Children’s Centre, Spalding Children’s Centre Chat n 
Chill group, Peele College and Holbeach Food Festival. 
Showcasing healthy wraps and crudites and teaching basic food 
hygiene and preparing a healthier Italian three-course meal. 
Engaged with around 200 people. No issues with project 
delivery. 

Orchestras Live Partnership Project. G G 

Working in partnership with Orchestras Live, the South Holland 
Centre's Youth Takeover Group and young musicians from 
across the district will have the opportunity to programme an 
Orchestral Concert performed by City Of London Sinfonia. The 
young people will choose a piece of music to be specially 
arranged for the orchestra and may even perform with them. 
Initial planning meetings have taken place. Planning is on track 
and there are no resource or delivery issues with this project. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Net additional dwelling stock (including demolitions and 
conversions) 

254 No. 57 No. 
The net amount of 57 for the period April - June includes 6 conversions 
and one demolition. There is no common theme of the conversions. 

House building completions - % that are affordable 
homes 

24.40% 43.00% 
Year to date (April - June) there were 25 affordable housing completions 
out of the 57 net additional dwelling stock completions. This equated to 
43% which is above the affordable housing target of 33.3%. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases referred to 
ASB Officer 

46 No. 14 No. 
Alongside the 14 cases that have been dealt with year to date, 29 first 
level warnings have been issued and 1 Unacceptable Behaviour Warning. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases resolved by 
the council’s ASB officer within 3 months 

26 No. 7 No. 

A higher proportion of cases are closed within the first three months. This 
is often achieved through working closely with agencies such as Police 
and Education Providers. Victims are contacted throughout their case to 
ensure they are aware of action being taken and are fully supported. 

Overall participation in cultural activity 
490,505.00 

No. 
110,294.00 

No. 

Participation in cultural activity has been good over this period.  
Attendance at the Castle Sports Centre is above target and has seen an 
increase in classes. The swimming pool has seen a reduction in usage 
due to works to the flooring. Activate days, Geest Gallery Exhibitions and 

P
age 47



 9 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Friends of Ayscoughfee concerts has led to almost double participation in 
arts and culture activities compared to this quarter last year.  There has 
been a lively Spring offer at the South Holland Centre including the Lego 
movie, popular youth theatre community hire and a sell out live show. 
Visitors have attended popular events at Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and 
visitor numbers are comparable to last year. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Spend on community grants £179,895.50 R £34,712.50 £50,647.50 G 

First quarter payments have been made to 
SHCABX, LCVS, and South Holland 
Voluntary Car Scheme as satisfactory 2013-
14 monitoring information has been 
received. The internal transfer of SHCABx 
rent and service charge and the contribution 
to CPRE Best Kept Village competition have 
both been made earlier than anticipated. 
Therefore spend is higher than anticipated 
in this quarter. Budgets are being spent in 
line with those approved at Full Council. 

 
 
Summary: Spend on Community Grants for quarter 1 has easily reached its anticipated outcome due to earlier than expected requests for grants.  However; 
budget spend is in line with that approved at Full Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



 10 

Corporate Health 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Number of Planning enforcement actions taken 21 No. 1 No. 
1 PCN served this quarter compared to 2 Enforcement Notices & 1 PCN in 
last quarter of 2013/14. 

Council Tax in year collection rate. 97.93% 30.43% 

Actual collection rate stands at 30.43% which compares with a 30.22% 
target for this stage. We are currently 0.21% up on the same period last 
year and 0.18% ahead of the JUN 12 target.  (NOTE: Revised Council 
Tax Support scheme this year now requires a 25% minimum contribution 
which is up from 8.5% in 2013/14) 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for licensed premises within the district 
based on a 10% sample per annum 

24.15% R 25.00% 8.77% G 

We have completed a number of 
inspections following complaints received. 
Proactive inspections are not being carried 
out at present.  

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for taxis (private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage) within the district based on a 
10% sample per annum 

119.57% G 25.00% 56.96% G 
Nine taxi inspections have been completed 
this quarter 

% of households where the council has 
acted to prevent homelessness 

30.60% G 20.00% 24% G 
The average for April and May was 24%, 
which is above target. June figures still not 
available due to data lag.  

% of rent collected against rent charged 95.71% A 91.3% 92.15% G 

Officers continue to monitor accounts 
closely: liaising with HB, identifying cases 
for DHP, offering tenancy support, referring 
to CAB for advice. 

% of Major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

35.48% R 60.00% 44.44% R 

9 major applications determined in YTD 
with 4 in time.  Affected by need to 
negotiate on major schemes, completion of 
S106 agreements and staffing situation. 

% of Planning applications approved 91.33% A 92.00% 90.00% A 153 of the 170 applications determined 

P
age 49



 11 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

were approved with 17 refused 

% of Planning applications determined 
(within statutory time periods) 

63.24% A 70.0% 52.1% A 
Significantly below profile, due to number 
and nature of applications coupled with 
staffing situation. 

% of benefit paid correctly 99.51% G 99.00% 99.34% G 

The net value of errors is still quite small, 
with 99.34% accuracy compared to 99.0% 
target. Work is being done around 
enhancing our training and quality 
assurance function to maintain and improve 
performance in this area.  The small 
volume of claims sampled in first few 
months of the year meant that we started 
the year below target but as anticipated 
that returned to within target by the end of 
the first quarter as more cases were 
sampled.  

Number of successful Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit sanctions and 
prosecutions per 1,000 caseload (by 
CPBS) 

4.59 No. G 0.87 No. 1.82 No. G 

The actual average net caseload at 30 
June 2014 is 7,702 for SHDC. At the end of 
the first quarter sanction targets have been 
exceeded with actual figures of 1.82 
compared with 0.87 target 

Non-Domestic rates in year collections 
rate 

98.86% G 31.50% 32.28% G 
32.28% collection rate compared with a 
target of 31.5% for this stage of the year. 

 
Summary: The performance measures '% of Major Planning Applications determined with 13 weeks', ‘% of Planning applications approved’ and ‘% of 
Planning applications determined (within statutory time periods)’ have all fallen short of their anticipated outcomes for Quarter 1.   
 Major planning applications has exceeded where it was for the end of 2013/14 but fallen short of where it predicted to be for Qtr 1 this is due to 

negotiations of S106 agreements.   
 Planning applications approved albeit 2% below the Qtr 1 predicted, the service still dealt with a large number of applications during this period with only 

17 refusals.  
 Planning applications determined fell well short of prediction; this is mainly due to nature of the application. 

 
 

P
age 50



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Strategic 

Planning and the Finance Manager (S151) 
 
To: Cabinet - 7 October 2014 
 
(Author: Mark Woolerton - Recovery & Support Supervisor) 
 
Subject: Write Offs 
 
Purpose: To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts 
 

Recommendation:  
 
1) That the amounts identified in this report are approved for write off. 
 
NOTE: Please raise any queries that you may have about individual write offs, as included 
in the Appendices, with Mark Woolerton at least two working days ahead of the scheduled 
meeting. 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report reviews irrecoverable debts over £1,050 which require Cabinet approval for 

write off.  A summary of these debts is shown in the table below and they total £ 
 
1.2 The need to write debt off usually arises due to the debtor being untraceable, 

insolvent, ceased trading with no assets or deceased with insufficient funds in the 
estate.  Where possible all methods of recovery are pursued before making the 
decision to write off. This can include internal recovery action, use of debt collection 
agents, external tracing agents and procedures through the Courts. 
 

1.3 A summary of debts requiring approval for write off is given in the tables overleaf. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8.



Value 
by 

Debtor 
     £ 

Council 
Tax 
 

    £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
      £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
      £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
    £ 

Housing 
Benefit  

Overpayments 
             £ 

 
       TOTAL 

 
              £ 

  1,050 
- 1,500 

£3,820.06 
- 
 

- 
- 
 

- £3,820.06 

  1,500 
- 2,000 

£1,740.95 £3,069.98 
- 
 

- £1,625.95 £6,436.88 

Over 
2,000 

£9,506.47 £11,110.09 - £2,349.82 £2,022.13 £24,988.51 

Total £15,067.48 £14,180.07 - £2,349.82 £3,648.08 £35,245.45 

Value Council 
Tax 
 

     £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
     £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
        £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
        £ 

Housing 
Benefit 

Overpayments 
              £ 

 
  TOTAL 

 
        £ 

 

2013/14 
Total 
written off 
in that 
year 

£61,158.99 £340,988.65 - £33,363.01 £12,403.28 £447,913.93 

 
 2014/15 

Previously 
approved 
write offs 

£22,518.43 £164,695.03 - £7,159.45 £10,567.93 £204,940.84 

Write offs 
included in 
this report 

£15,067.48 £14,180.07 - £2,349.82 £3,648.08 £35,245.45 

2014/15 
Total  
written off 
in this 
year so far 

£37,585.91 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Or 0.09 % 
of 2014/15 
collectable 

debit 

£178,875.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Or 0.67% of 
2014/15 

collectable 
debit 

   
£0.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

or % of 
value of all 
invoices 
raised in 
last 12 
months  

£9,509.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£14,216.01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

or 1.43% of 
repayable 

overpayments 

£240,186.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
           Details of the individual debts are shown in the exempt appendices, as listed below: 
 

� Appendix A – Council Tax 
� Appendix B – Business Rates 
� Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) 
� Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears 
� Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayments 
 
 
 

Page 52



1.4 All debts approved for write off will be set against the existing bad debt provisions and they 
can be resurrected in full or in part at any time should new information come to light 
suggesting that they may be recoverable after all.  In every case, we believe that all 
collection options have been exhausted and that there are now no realistic prospects of 
recovery. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the recommendation.  
 
2.2 To approve the recommendation with amendments. 

 
2.3 Not to approve the recommendation. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 All recovery methods available have been considered and where appropriate pursued 

before making the decision to write off. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 

 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report has been written in line with the Constitution. 
 
5.2.2 The Appendices to this report are confidential as they include exempt information as 

described in Schedule 12A Part 1, Paragraph 1 (information relating to any individual), 
Paragraph 2 (information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual) and 
Paragraph 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
[including the authority holding that information]). 
 

5.2.3 The anticipated benefits of publishing information identifying individuals does not outweigh 
the risks of a data protection breach and it is therefore considered that the information 
should remain exempt from publication and public meetings. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1  The possible implications have been considered and there are none . 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 

Page 53



5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 

 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 The proposed write offs will be written off against the existing bad debt provisions. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.8.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications has been considered and there 

are none. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 
5.9.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications has been considered and there 

are none.  
 
5.10 Staffing 
 
5.10.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications have been considered and there 

are none. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications have been considered and there 

are none. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 None 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Mark Woolerton – Recovery and Support Supervisor 
Telephone Number: 01775 764631 
Email:  mark.woolerton@cpbs.com 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Julie Kennealy – Executive Director Place 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
 
 

Page 54



Appendices attached to this report:  
 
The following appendices are Not For Publication by virtue of Paragraphs 1, 2 & 3 in Part 1 
of Schedule 12a of Local Government Act 1972. 
 
Appendix A – Council Tax Write Offs 
Appendix B – Business Rate Write Offs 
Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) Write Offs 
Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears Write Offs 
Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayment Write Offs 
  
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 11.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	6.a) Interim Report of the Leisure Task Group
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 (a)
	Appendix 1 (b)
	Appendix 1 (c)
	Summary of Income and Expenditure 2013-14.pdf
	Summary of Income and Expenditure 2013-14 3
	Summary of Income and Expenditure 2013-14 2
	Summary of Income and Expenditure 2013-14 1

	Appendix 1 (d)
	Appendix 1 (e)

	7. Performance Report for Quarter 1 2014-15
	Appendix A

	8. Write Offs
	11. Write Offs - Appendix



